
Meeting Minutes 
April 2024 

Newton Parks & Recreation Commission 
Meeting Minutes-Hybrid Meeting 

7:00 p.m. – Monday, April 29, 2024 
 

Attending: Arthur Magni, Chair, Byron Dunker, Vice-Chair, Commissioner Banks, Beth Wilkinson, John Rice, Randy Johnson, 
Sheila Butts, Jack Neville, Mark Feldhusen, Gloria Gavris, Midge Connolly, Ted Chapman 

 

Meeting began:  7:00pm 
 

1. Meeting Minutes –March 2024 
• Approved 8-0 

  
2. Outdoor Special Events– Public Hearing  

• India Independence Day- Aug 17 – Hyde Playground – Janice Bourque 
• Taiwan Music Festival – Sept 21 – Hyde Playground – Janice Bourque 

o Chairman Magni opened the meeting to public comments. No comments  
 

Ms. Butts made the motion to approve the Hyde Special events as presented.  Mr. Neville seconded the motion. 
Motion passed 8-0.  Mr. Rice recused from vote. 

 
• St. Mary of Carmen Festival- July 17-21- Pellegrini Playground-Chuck Proia 

o Mr. Proia stated there have been no significant changes to the festival.  
o Chairman Magni opened the meeting to public comments. No comments 

 
Ms. Connolly made the motion to approve the event as presented.  Mr. Johnson seconded the motion. Motion 

passed 8-0.  Chairman Magni recused from vote. 
 

• Nonantum Village Day – June 2 – Coletti-Magni Park- Terry Sauro 
o Ms. Sauro stated the event has expanded to the road (Watertown St) 
o Rain date is set for June 23.   
o This is a free event. Mr. Johnson asked how many people usually attend.  Ms. Sauro 

replied 300-400 people attend.  
 

Mr. Feldhusen made the motion to approve the proposal as presented.  Mr. Dunker seconded the motion. Motion 
passed 8-0. Chairman Magni recused from the vote. 

 
3. Parks Land Beehive Policy- Ahron Lerman- (draft proposal attached below)  

• Mr. Lehrman reviewed the draft proposal and summarized the basic rules: 
o Deadline to apply. 
o $60/year fee 
o Must be a Newton resident. 
o Set term.  
o Have experience -Hobbyist not professional. 
o Limit to # of hives. 

• Mr. Chapman commented: 
o If insurance is required, the language should be added to the policy. 
o Alan Nogee, Friends of Cold Spring Park is a big proponent of native pollinators and 

Mr. Chapman supports his concerns. 
o To safely add to the bee population could it be a 2-hive limit per 4 acres in a larger 

park. 
o And agrees the priority should be native pollinators.  
o Is there a record of how many hives there are on private property.  



Meeting Minutes 
April 2024 

• Ms. Wilkinson replied, Alicia Bowman was working on a policy with the Law Department, 
Currently Councilor Humphrey has taken charge of developing the policy. Bee hives would be 
registered under agriculture, the same as a chicken or duck.  

• Ms. Gavris commented: 
o  If the insurance level could be lowered, the insurance can be expensive.  
o Would this be a department administrative process or require a public hearing?  
o Has a list of available spaces been identified?  Mr. Lerman commented a list has not 

been identified. 
• Ms. Butts commented as someone who is allergic to bees requested playgrounds not be 

included on the list, please think of appropriate areas for the bee hives. And recommends not 
publishing the list, keep it in house.   

• Ms. Wilkinson commented:  
o For the sake of native bees do not consider more than 2 apiaries per park. 
o Understands trying to benefit the public by having a list, but we are not trying to fill 

up the parks with hives, we should not supply a list.  
o Nahanton Park is overstocked, and the number of hives should be reduced over the 

winter.  
o Enforcement would be difficult for the department.  

• Mr. Feldhusen agreed with Ms. Wilkinson and asked if hobbyist can make money by selling 
honey. What is the defining line between a hobbyist and professional beekeeper.   

• Mr. Lerman responded a hobbyist can have no more than 10 hives and selling honey at a craft 
fair would recoup their costs.  

• Ms. Connolly stated one hive creates 50-100 pounds of honey per season. And asked if the 
previous deer park in Webster Woods would be a good location for beehives?  Mr. Lerman 
stated Webster Woods is conservation property and the Conservation Commission has their 
own policy.  Ms. Wilkinson stated there are beehives in Webster Woods.  

• Policing the hives will have to be figured out. Stephanie Lapham Nahanton Park Gardens 
manager is working with the beekeeper at Nahanton Park to reduce the number of hives. Ms. 
Wilkinson commented the beekeeper in Nahanton Park is not a Newton resident.  

• Mr. Johnson commented his neighbor had a hive in his backyard, one summer, and Mr. Johnson 
could not use his backyard the entire summer due to the bees.  Mr. Johnson recommends a 
one-year term with the option to extend. Mr. Neville agreed the one-year term is the way to go.  

• Mr. Chapman requested Mr. Nogee share the scientific difference between native bees and 
honeybees. 

• Mr. Nogee thanked the city for supporting native pollinator gardens.  
o Honeybees are important to agriculture but not important in a natural 

environment.  There is competition between honeybees and native bees which is a 
problem.  Mr. Nogee preference is no hives in any parks except where people are 
growing crops. And no apiaries near at-risk species 

o If the policy affects the reduction of the 20 hives in Nahanton parks he would be 
grateful.  

o The process should be a public process with abutter notification.  
• Commissioner Banks requested Mr. Nogee connect with Mr. Lerman to review the policy. 
• Mr. Lerman commented he will take the input from the Commission and update the draft policy 

for review later.  
 

4. FY25 Budget update -presentation attached.  
• Commissioner Banks & March Welch, Deputy Commissioner/City Forester reviewed the FY25 

budget presentation.  
o Forestry 



Meeting Minutes 
April 2024 

 Ms. Butts asked if the new Forestry admin will be contractual, and Mr. 
Feldhusen asked if the position would have a benefits package.  
Commissioner Banks stated the position will be a full-time union position 
with benefits.  

 Ms. Wilkinson stated this is a needed position, the new permitting 
requirements is a longer and more complicated application process. 

 Mr. Chapman, member of the Tree Conservancy stated the tree crews work 
with trees but also with people which is an additional challenge.  
Commissioner Banks agreed the team is forward facing in the community.  

 Mr. Welch stated additional staff will be added to the tree crew. This is 
covered by using the contractual funds allocated in the previous budget.  
Having the crew in-house provides more flexibility and efficiency. 

o Grounds Maintenance/Beautification 
 Commissioner Banks commented the biggest need in Grounds Maintenance 

is staffing.  The staffing request was included in the override that was not 
approved.  

 Mr. Welch commented Grounds Maintenance has contractual money for 
grass mowing.  Taking these contractual funds for maintenance staffing 
would not work because equipment would also need to be purchased and 
the mowing equipment is expensive, and they would need space to store 
the equipment.  Whereas Forestry does not need to buy any new 
equipment for the additional staff.   

o Parks and Open Space 
 This division began as the Adopt-a-Space program and now has grown to 

manage Capital Projects.  
 Mr. Feldhusen commented the new installation of the Wellington Park 

sensory dome was a great project with the assistance of Stephanie Lapham 
and Luis Perez Demorizi.  

 Commissioner Banks stated the support from the Friends group allows the 
department to stretch what we can get done. 

o Field Projects 
 Field Lights at NNHS & NSHS  
 Light retrofit at Forte Park 

o Recreation & Community Programs  
 New Leadership position 

• Ms. Butts asked how Programs & Services Committee received the presentation.  Commissioner 
Banks stated the presentation went well and the support from the Commission and Staff was 
appreciated.   

• Mr. Rice commented the PRC Department accomplishes a large amount of things with a small 
amount of people.   

   
5. Commissioner’s Report 

• Commissioner Banks recognized Andy Gluck, applicant for the P & R Commission. Part of the 
process is to attend meetings before the interview. 

• Program Managers are hiring summer staff right now. There is a new application process.  
Commissioner Banks wanted to recognize Julie Babcock, Payroll Clerk who is managing the new 
hiring process with the Recreation Managers who are also acting as hiring managers. 

• Marty Sender path Project is under way. 
• Newton Serves is scheduled May 5 
• Family Fun Fest is scheduled May 18 & 19, it is the City’s 150th birthday. 
• Ms. Butts asked when Crystal Lake will open. Commissioner Banks the opening information will 

be available soon, school is out later so we must figure out staffing. 



Meeting Minutes 
April 2024 

• Ms. Wilkinson stated Ms. Babcock is the Payroll Clerk but has received emails from her 
regarding other subjects. Commissioner Banks stated Ms. Babcock is the Payroll Clerk, her other 
responsibility is to assist Forestry with storm emergencies.  Ms. Babcock is also part of the PRC 
Office Admin team with Ms. McLaughlin and Ms. Murphy.  They manage all customer service 
requests in the office.  

• Mr. Johnson commented the new on-boarding process is a better process than last year. 
Commissioner Banks commented the PRC Department is the first department to go through this 
process, we have a good team.  

 
6. Committee Reports  

• Community Preservation Committee -B. Dunker 
o Mr. Dinker reported things have been quiet. 

• Urban Tree Commission – B. Wilkinson 
o At the April meeting, commission members were concerned about issues raised by 

a lawyer and architect at the P & S Committee meeting on April 10.  To quote from 
the report “The Chair noted that some individuals have come forward noting how 
they find the tree ordinance difficult to comply with…both Deputy Commissioner 
Welch and Andrew Lee Senior Assistant City Solicitor, agreed the ordinance has 
been in effect for six weeks and evaluation is needed to identify any potential 
amendments.”  Tree Commission members agreed that more time is needed to 
evaluate the updated ordinance and expressed concern that nothing be done to 
undermine the protection offered by the revised ordinance.  

• Farm Commission – B. Wilkinson 
o The annual seedling sale will take place on May 18-19 from noon to 3pm.   

• Off-Leash Area Working Group (OLAWG) – Commissioner 
o March 28 meeting – Edmands Park proposal was presented and is under review by 

the department, may be presented to the Commission in the Fall.  
o Walker Parker Plan 

 Includes 1 or 2 crosswalks. 
 Additional parking 
 North side of the pike 

o Cabot Park off-leash area 
 Has been flooding, Maintenance found the issue and cleared the basin 

cover to drain properly.  Currently researching new ground cover for Cabot 
off-leash area.  

• Arts & Culture – G. Gavris 
o Commissioner Banks covered the current events, there will be more to report next 

month.  
 

7. New Business 
 
Meeting Adjourned 9:14 pm 
Respectfully Submitted,  
Robin McLaughlin, Commission Secretary 

 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 2024 

 

Proposed Beehive Policy 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 2024 

  

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
April 2024 



Meeting Minutes 
April 2024 

FY25 Budget 

 
  



Meeting Minutes 
April 2024 

  

 

  



Meeting Minutes 
April 2024 

  
  

 

 



Meeting Minutes 
April 2024 

 


